
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

 
Monday, July 27, 2015

8:30 am

Knox Mountain Meeting Room (#4A)

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Confirmation of Minutes 3 - 4

Regular AM Meeting - July 13, 2015

3. Resolution Closing the Meeting to the Public

THAT this meeting be closed to the public pursuant to Section 90(1) (f) of the
Community Charter for Council to deal with matters relating to the following:

• Law Enforcement.

4. Adjourn to Closed Session

5. Reconvene to Open Session

6. Reports

6.1 Principles and Strategies for Financial Strength &
Stability

90 m 5 - 37

To seek Council endorsement for the Principles and Strategies for Financial
Strength &  Stability document.

6.2 Chauffeur Permit Appeal Hearing Process - Refresher 10 m

To review with Council the process with respect to Chauffeur Permit Appeal
Hearings.

1



7. Resolution Closing the Meeting to the Public

THAT this meeting be closed to the public pursuant to Section 90(1) (e) and 90(2)
(b) of the Community Charter for Council to deal with matters relating to the
following:

• Acquisition, Disposition, or Expropriation, of Land or Improvements;
• Negotiations with another level of government (Federal Government).

8. Adjourn to Closed Session

9. Reconvene to Open Session

10. Issues Arising from Correspondence & Community Concerns

10.1 2015 Creative City Summit - Grant in Aid Request 15 m 38 - 39

To consider a Grant-in-Aid Request pursuant to Council Policy No. 058 in
support of the Charles Montgomery workshop and keynote address at the 2015
Creative City Summit to be held in Kelowna on October 27-29, 2015.

10.2 Mayor Basran, re: Issues Arising from Correspondence 30 m

11. Termination

2



 1 

 
 

City of Kelowna 
Regular Council Meeting 

Minutes 
 
 
Date: 
Location: 

Monday, July 13, 2015 
Knox Mountain Meeting Room (#4A) 
City Hall, 1435 Water Street 

 
Council Members 
Present: 

Mayor Colin Basran and Councillors Maxine DeHart, Ryan Donn, Gail 
Given*, Tracy Gray, Charlie Hodge,  Brad Sieben, Mohini Singh and 
Luke Stack 

 
Staff Present: City Manager, Ron Mattiussi; City Clerk, Stephen Fleming and Parks 

Services Manager, Ian Wilson* 
 
(* denotes partial attendance) 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Mayor Basran called the meeting to order at 3:14 p.m. 

 
5. Confirmation of Minutes 
 
Moved By  Councillor Hodge/Seconded By  Councillor DeHart 
 

R520/15/07/13  THAT the Minutes of the Regular AM Meeting of June 29, 2015 be 
confirmed as circulated. 

 
Carried 

 
6. Resolution Closing the Meeting to the Public 
 
Moved By  Councillor Stack/Seconded By  Councillor Given 
 

R521/15/07/13  THAT this meeting be closed to the public pursuant to Section 90(1) 
(e), (j) and (k) of the Community Charter for Council to deal with matters relating to 
the following: 

  

 
3



 2 

 
• Acquisition, Disposition, or Expropriation, of Land or Improvements; 
• Third Party Information; and 
• Provision of a Municipal Service. 

 
Carried 

 
7. Adjourn to Closed Session 
 
The meeting adjourned to a closed session at 3:24 p.m. 

 
8. Reconvene to Open Session 
 
The meeting reconvened to an open session at 6:25 p.m. 

 
9. Issues Arising from Correspondence & Community Concerns 
 

9.2 Councillor Gray, re: Milfoil in Okanagan Lake 
9.3 Councillor Gray, re:  Blue Green Algae in Okanagan Lake 
 

Councillor Gray: 
- Advised that there needs to be a drop off location along the City foreshore for cut milfoil. 
- New docks are impacting lake water flow and new areas are now seeing milfoil where 

there was none beforehand. 
- Concerns over a blue green algae outbreak in the Lake due to warmest waters in 30 years. 
 
Staff: 
- Have reached a tentative agreement earlier today for dumping cut milfoil in Kinsman 

Park; however the details still need to be worked out, 
- Will provide an update to Council once the details are known. 

 
9.1 Mayor Basran, re: Council Tours 
 

City Manager: 
- Inquired if Council wanted to continue with 'off' Monday Council Tours. 
 
Council: 
- Advised tours no more to be scheduled. 

 
10. Termination 
 
The meeting was declared terminated at 6:34 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Mayor                  City Clerk 
 
/scf/slh 

 
4



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
July 27, 2015 
 

File: 
 

0220-01 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Genelle Davidson, Financial Services Director 

Subject: 
 

Principles and Strategies for Financial Strength & Stability 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council endorses the Principles and Strategies for Financial Strength & Stability 
document as outlined in the Report from the Financial Services Director dated July 27, 2015;  
 
AND THAT Council directs staff to report back with the finalized Principles and Strategies 
detailed document and summary sheet. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To seek Council endorsement for the Principles and Strategies for Financial Strength & 
Stability document. 
 
Background: 
 
Strong financial management is one of the primary goals of the City of Kelowna. The City is 
facing economic and growth realities and it is incumbent on the leadership to ensure 
alignment of the financial principles and strategies thereby ensuring that the City is resilient 
and sustainable. 
 
The Principles and Strategies for financial strength and stability document is intended to be a 
hands-on reference guide for Council, senior leadership and staff when considering decisions 
that impact the City’s financial strength and stability. Consideration should be given to 
ensure the proposal being contemplated and subsequent decision is aligned with the City’s 
endorsed financial principles and with one or more of the ten financial strategies. The 
document will also be an informative document for the community so that they are aware of 
the financial principles we live by and the financial strategies outlining how we will get there.   
 
Staff met with Council on May 22 in a workshop led by a consultant from Urban Systems to 
introduce a draft of the City’s Financial Principles and Strategies. Staff then incorporated the 

5



feedback that was received from Council and subsequently presented the post-workshop 
Principles and Strategies to the senior leadership team to receive their feedback. 
 
A second Council workshop on June 22 was held where staff circled back to Council with the 
revisions from the initial workshop. Council endorsed the principles and strategies as 
presented and directed staff to continue building the document providing additional detail 
and context around each of the ten strategies. 
 
The five financial principles that were endorsed by Council on June 22 are: Sufficient; 
Pragmatic; Flexible; Transparent; Balanced. These principles serve as a basis against which 
the financial strategies as outlined below, can be tested, reviewed and updated as needed. 
 
The ten financial strategies that were endorsed by Council on June 22 are: Assets – New; 
Assets – Renew; Debt; Development Financing; Grants; Operations; Partnerships & Enterprise; 
Property Taxation; Reserves & Surplus Funds; User Fees & Charges.  
 
Staff has worked with the senior leadership team to receive their input and comments as well 
as the internal staff project team. All feedback has been incorporated and is now presented 
in a third workshop for Council approval and endorsement. 
 
The final document will include the comprehensive report as presented today, as well as a 
summary sheet for easy reference. 
 
 
Internal Circulation:  
Divisional Director Infrastructure 
Divisional Director Corporate & Protective Services 
Communications Consultant 
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
G. Davidson, Financial Services Director 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 Rob Mayne, Div. Director Corporate & Protective Services 

  

6



 

Principles and strategies 
for financial strength & stability 
 
 

 
July 2015 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

1435 Water Street 

Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4 

TEL 250-469-8500 

FAX 250 862-3316 

ask@kelowna.ca 

 
kelowna.ca 

7



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Urban Systems Ltd.  

 
This report is prepared for the sole use of the City of Kelowna. No representations of any kind are made by 

Urban Systems Ltd. or its employees to any party with whom Urban Systems Ltd. does not have a contract. 

 

8



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  1 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION                                                                                  2 

The foundation of a vibrant community 2 

Purpose of this document 2 

Decision making framework 2 

PRINCIPLES FOR FINANCIAL STRENGTH & STABILITY                 3 

Sufficient 3 

Pragmatic 3 

Flexible  3 

Transparent 3 

Balanced 3 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES                                 4 

Assets - New 5 

Assets - Renew 6 

Debt 7 

Development Financing 8 

Grants 9 

Operations 10 

Partnerships & Enterprise 11 

Property Taxation 12 

Reserves & Surplus Funds 13 

User Fees & Charges 14 

GLOSSARY                                                                                          15 

 

 

9



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  2 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The foundation of a vibrant community 

As outlined in the City of Kelowna’s Official Community Plan (OCP) 2010-2030, members of the 

community envision a Kelowna that offers “the best balance between environmental protection, 

economic growth, social development and cultural vibrancy.” Financial strength and stability will 

provide the foundation for the City to provide services, infrastructure and amenities desired by the 

citizens of Kelowna today and in the future. 

 

Purpose of this document 

The City defines financial strength and stability as “the ability to acquire and manage a portfolio of 

financial and physical assets that meet the current and future needs of our community”. This is the 

goal. The principles and strategies set out in this document will guide decision-making within the City 

and help to realize this goal and, ultimately, the vision for Kelowna.  

 

The purpose of this document is to outline those principles and strategies and to guide staff and 

Council in the work they do. 

 

This document is an important resource in the City’s overall decision-making framework. If the 

community’s vision is the ultimate destination, and we need financial strength and stability to get 

there, then: 

 these principles are what we live by  

 these strategies are how we’ll get there  

These principles and strategies will guide the development of detailed policies, which will set the 
boundaries for budgeting and planning decisions. Performance measures will tell us how we’re doing 
along the way. 
 

Decision making framework 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community vision and 
priorities 

Principles of financial 
strength & stability  

Strategies for financial 
strength & stability 

Financial policies and 
performance measures 

Budgeting and planning 

10



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  3 

PRINCIPLES FOR FINANCIAL 
STRENGTH & STABILITY 

 
The financial strategies contained within this document are consistent with the principles presented below. 
These principles serve as a basis against which the financial strategies can be tested, reviewed and updated 
as needed. 

 
Sufficient | Revenues and expenses support the City’s service levels and long-term 

goals 
 
The 2015 Citizen Survey results tell us that residents of Kelowna value the high quality services that they 
receive and are accustomed to. In order to meet these service standards the City needs to ensure that the 
budgets for operations and infrastructure are sufficient. Revenues also need to be sufficient to meet long-
term investment needs. 

 

Pragmatic | Financial decisions take measured risks while ensuring appropriate service 

levels are protected 
 
There will be occasions when assuming some degree of risk is advantageous to the City in order to leverage 
opportunities or to be ready to meet the needs of a changing population. However, any risks taken need to be 
measured and carefully considered so the impacts on delivery of City services are understood. 
 

Flexible | Financial policies allow for opportunities and changing circumstances 
 
The City needs the flexibility to take advantage of arising opportunities and to respond to emergent issues. 
Resources need to be accessible for the unforeseen and policy frameworks need to allow for flexibility and 
swift action when required. 
 

Transparent | Financial strategies, plans and processes are accessible and visible 
 
The citizens of Kelowna are interested in what their local government is doing. Having information easily 
available and presented in a form that is easy to understand encourages discussion and engagement, holding 
decision-makers accountable. Being transparent ultimately builds trust and benefits the community overall. 
 

Balanced | Service levels are affordable and appropriate 
 
The citizens of Kelowna expect consistent and quality services from their local government. They also expect 
that decisions regarding the variety and level of services they receive and pay for make efficient use of their 
tax dollars and user fees. This requires a careful balance between the level of service and the cost of the 
service to ensure the needs of the City are met. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

11



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  4 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES 
 
The ten strategies contained in this document are intended to guide the City’s future financial planning. 
While some of these strategies focus on a particular component of the financial balance – revenues and costs 
– they are all interrelated and work together to provide a broad framework for managing the City’s overall 
finances.  
 
Reference these strategies widely and often. They guide the development of financial policies and 
performance measures, which provide boundaries for financial decision-making and report on how we are 
doing.  
 
The ten financial management strategies are:  

 

 Assets - New 

 Assets - Renew 

 Debt 

 Development Financing 

 Grants 

 Operations 

 Partnerships & Enterprise 

 Property Taxation 

 Reserves & Surplus Funds 

 User Fees & Charges 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  5 

ASSETS - NEW 
 
New assets add to the City’s inventory and are required to improve services or accommodate growth but do 
not include asset renewal or replacement. 
 
Having clear processes in place for deciding on when and how to invest in new assets will facilitate sound 
financial decision-making that is understood and supported by Council, staff and the community. This means 
taking a holistic, multiple bottom line approach to prioritizing capital projects; evaluating emergent 
opportunities against existing priorities; and communicating the decision-making process in a way that is 
transparent and easy to understand. 
 

Objective 
 
To ensure new asset investments are financially strong, stable, and aligned with City priorities. 

 

Strategies 
 
1.1 Expenditures for new assets will be prioritized based on social, economic and 
environmental factors and life cycle cost implications 
 
The community’s vision for Kelowna is a balance of social, economic, and environmental factors. It is 
important for the City to consider this holistic set of factors when setting priorities for expenditures, as there 
may be cases where a project meets the financial bottom line but may negatively impact the environment 
over the long term. The full life cycle costs of operating, maintaining and replacing infrastructure, and 
providing services will be considered when making financial decisions. 

 
1.2 Emergent opportunities will be evaluated against existing priorities 
 
It is important that the City remains open and flexible to emergent opportunities, whether they are 
opportunities for new grants, innovative ways of providing services, or new approaches to community 
development. However, the City will maintain its long-term vision and will evaluate emergent opportunities 
against existing priorities. 

 
1.3 Investment in new assets should follow the long-term capital plan 
 
New capital investments should be made following the long-term capital plan in order to address the 
community’s highest needs and the City’s risk tolerance. It is important to maintain a certain degree of 
flexibility along the way to respond to emergent opportunities. 
 

1.4 The decision-making process for new asset investment will be documented, transparent 
and clearly communicated to Council, staff and the community 
 
A clear process for identifying and prioritizing new capital projects will provide Council, staff and the 
community with a common language so decisions regarding capital expenditures are clearly communicated 
and understood. This is essential for fostering an engaged community and for holding decision-makers 
accountable.  
 

  

13



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  6 

ASSETS - RENEW 
 
The delivery of municipal services greatly depends on a wide variety of infrastructure such as roads, 
buildings, sewer and water systems. While much of this infrastructure lasts a long time, it eventually needs to 
be renewed or replaced. The replacement of these assets is expensive and therefore needs to be carefully 
planned for so the City maintains its financial strength and stability for future generations. The timing and 
funding requirements for asset renewal and replacement are part of the City’s long term capital plan. 

 

Objective 
 
To proactively manage and reinvest in City assets to meet service level needs for current and future 
generations. 

 

Strategies 
 
2.1 The City will invest in existing infrastructure renewal in accordance with the long-term 
capital plan 
 
The City’s long-term capital plan sets out priorities for capital infrastructure upgrades in order to provide 
appropriate levels of service to the community over the long term. Deviations from the plan can jeopardize 
future service levels, leading to unexpected asset failures which can be costly and potentially pose a risk to 
service levels, public health and safety. 

 
2.2 Funding for asset renewal will be balanced against service levels and risk tolerance 
 
The point at which infrastructure will require renewal cannot be known exactly, and needs to be viewed with 
consideration to service levels and risk tolerance. For example, infrastructure that is considered critical to 
system operations will be given a higher priority for capital reinvestment. This may come with the tradeoff of 
deferring renewal of other less critical infrastructure. 

 
2.3 Life cycle costs should be managed through preventative maintenance and renewal 
strategies 
 
Proactive asset management should yield more stable annual costs and lower total lifecycle costs than 
reactive repair and renewal. Asset management is about making investment decisions with respect to 
building, operating, maintaining and replacing infrastructure assets. 
 

  

14



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  7 

DEBT 
 
Debt is a common tool that municipalities use to finance capital expenditures over both the medium and long 
term. Debt is viewed as a fair way of financing a project since those who are paying the principal and interest 
charges are benefitting from the service. 
 

Objective 
 
To ensure debt financing is used strategically to maintain the City’s financial strength and stability. 
 

Strategies 
 
3.1 General Fund debt servicing costs will be maintained at or below a targeted level of 
annual taxation demand 
The City’s general fund is used to cover the cost of providing services such as roads and police/emergency 
services (i.e. services which benefit the entire community, as opposed to a specific user or group). For such 
general services, debt servicing costs will remain at or below a targeted level of annual taxation in order to 
ensure that the annual debt payments are reasonable and that future debt capacity remains to take 
advantage of emergent opportunities. 
 

3.2 The City’s debt capacity will be preserved by limiting the use of debt to fund only one-
time major capital projects 
Many capital expenditures recur on an annual basis and are relatively stable over time. This would include 
expenditures such as paving roads and replacing water and sewer mains. These recurring types of 
expenditures can be readily financed with a “pay as you go” strategy. However some projects do not recur on 
an annual basis and require significant amounts of funds, such as a new fire hall or sewage treatment plant. 
For these one-time major capital projects, debt is the preferred funding source. By borrowing for major, one-
time capital projects only, the City will preserve debt servicing capacity for when, or if, it is truly needed. 

 
3.3 If possible and when beneficial, debt will be paid down earlier 
It is not always beneficial to pay down debt at every opportunity. Variables such as existing and future 
interest rates are a key consideration in this decision. For example, if the cost of borrowing for a new major 
infrastructure project is significantly higher than the interest rates on existing debt, the City should consider 
maintaining the existing debt and transferring available funds to the new capital project. However, when it is 
beneficial to do so, the City should consider retirement of existing debt a priority. 
 

3.4 Financing for less than a five-year term will be completed through internal financing 
 
For smaller projects requiring a financing term of five years or less, the City should fund by borrowing from 
its reserves.  This approach conserves borrowing capacity and has the benefit of the City paying the interest 
to itself rather than to an external lender.  
 

3.5 Impacts on overall City debt levels from “self-funded” cost centres and Funds will be 
reviewed and understood 
 
The City has several “self-funded” cost centres and Funds whereby these cost centres and Funds debt 
servicing costs are paid for by user fees specific to that area. I.e. Airport, Water, Wastewater and Parking. 
Impacts on overall City of Kelowna debt capacity should be considered so that these areas do not 
inadvertently negatively affect the City’s ability to borrow for General Fund purposes.  

 
 

15



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  8 

DEVELOPMENT FINANCING 

 
Development cost charges (DCCs) are collected by the City from land developers to offset the cost of new or 
expanded infrastructure for new users, such as roads, drainage, sewers, water, and parks. DCC’s are one-time 
charges that are paid by the developer at the time of subdivision or acquiring a building permit. Development 
charges do not pay for operating costs or for the future repair, renewal or replacement of infrastructure. 

 
Objective 
 
To ensure growth helps to pay for the demand it creates and does not impose an undue financial burden on 
Kelowna taxpayers. 

 
Strategies 
 
4.1 Developers will pay their fair share for growth-related infrastructure through DCCs and 
other tools 
 

Infrastructure costs should be paid by those who will use and benefit from the installation of such systems. 

DCC’s should employ mechanisms that distribute these costs between existing users and new development in 

a fair, equitable and transparent manner.   

 

4.2 Where appropriate, other funding can be used to provide additional capacity over and 
above the current OCP horizon 
 
For some capital upgrades, it may be appropriate to consider growth over a longer horizon than the 
timeframe covered by the City’s OCP. The OCP horizon is parallel to the DCC program horizon.  Examples 
include long term utility plans that have a vision beyond the OCP; over sizing a sewer main to eventually 
service existing homes beyond the identified growth area. 

 
4.3 Taxation-funded DCC’s through grant programs may be used to encourage economic 
development and community projects 
 
Financial assistance for non-profit and affordable rental housing is an example of the social investment the 
City may wish to make in achieving its vision. 

  

16



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  9 

GRANTS 

 
A grant is a transfer of money to the City from another entity (generally a higher level of government). There 
are two types of grants: 
 
Conditional grants These are provided for a specific purpose and may not be used for any other 

project.  An example would be the Infrastructure Canada Grants. 
 

Unconditional grants These are provided without conditions on their use.  An example would be the 
provincial Gas Tax community works fund. 

 
Grants are a useful tool in a municipality’s financial toolbox, and can be used strategically to offset costs to 
taxpayers and ratepayers. However, a reliance on grants to fund capital projects and services will undermine 
a community’s ability to attain financial strength and stability. Furthermore, most grants require that the 
beneficiary covers a portion of the cost to deliver the project, highlighting the need for grants to be 
leveraged for projects that are a City priority.  
 

Objective 
 
To pragmatically leverage grant opportunities. 

 

Strategies 
 
5.1 Grants will only be pursued for the City’s priority projects 
 
Grants are often offered to local governments by senior levels of government in response to senior 
government priorities. These priorities may not always align with those of the City of Kelowna, which are set 
out by Council in response to the community’s needs and aspirations. 
 
The City will strategically identify opportunities for grants that align with local priorities.  This will ensure 
that efforts remain focused on what matters in the community, and that the City’s funds or resources are not 
diverted from where they are actually needed. 

 
5.2 Grant funding will not increase the scope of a project without Council endorsement 
 
Direction on the scope of a priority project is provided by Council so it delivers the appropriate level of 
service. An increase in scope in response to a grant opportunity may not be the most appropriate use of City 
funds or resources; therefore, Council will review such grant opportunities and revisions to scope and only 
endorse them if they align with the City’s. 
 

5.3 Annual project funding must be sufficient without conditional grants 
 
Dependence on grants as a funding source is not in line with the City’s principles of financial management.  
The City will plan and budget for projects and services annually under the assumption that conditional grants 
will not be received by the City. Grants will be treated as opportunities to leverage City funds only where 
appropriate.  
 

5.4 Long-term financial planning will rely on unconditional grant opportunities only 
Unconditional grants may be used as a planned source of revenue only if it can be expected as funding 
available over the long term. An example of this is the Community Works Fund under the Renewed Gas Tax 
Agreement, which is available to all municipalities from the federal government as a direct annual allocation 
to support local priorities. 

17



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  10 

 

OPERATIONS 

 
The City needs sufficient revenues to sustain ongoing operations over the lifetime of a service or asset. 
Without sufficient revenues, service levels may be affected and assets can quickly deteriorate and become 
liabilities.   

 

Objective 
 
To ensure operations receive sufficient financial support to provide programs and services to residents. 

 

Strategies 
 
6.1 All services, including new services, must be aligned with the City’s priorities and 
reviewed regularly 
 
It is important that that City regularly reviews its services and related operating costs to ensure that services 
continue to align with the City’s priorities, providing good value to the community. 

 
6.2 The full financial cost of service and staff requirements will be understood by Council 
and administration 
 
The City’s decision-makers need to have a comprehensive understanding of the full cost of service provision 
so that service levels and revenues remain in balance. This includes accounting for staffing requirements that 
provide corporate services support such as finance, human resources, information technology, and 
communications which are required as City services change. 

 
6.3 Future changes in operating costs, including personnel resourcing requirements, will be 
considered in long-term capital and financial planning 
 
The City must consider the impacts on the operating budget as part of long term capital planning to ensure 
that the full cost of delivering the service is incorporated into long term financial plans.  
 

6.4 Ongoing operating activities will only be funded through taxes, fees and charges 
 
Ongoing operating costs will not be covered through reserves, debt, or grants. The City will set taxes, fees 
and charges to achieve full cost recovery, where appropriate, balancing affordability and accessibility with 
value for level of service. 
 

  

18



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  11 

PARTNERSHIPS & ENTERPRISE 
 
A healthy community thrives on establishing economically and socially beneficial partnerships. To provide the 
services its residents want, Kelowna has nurtured many partnerships with individuals, community groups and 
private-sector companies. Partnerships can be an effective approach to providing community facilities, 
programs and services without increasing general taxation. 

 

Objective 
 
To proactively explore opportunities that build community capacity and connections, and leverage resources 
to provide services that are aligned with City priorities. 

 

Strategies 
 
7.1 The City will pragmatically partner with other entities to deliver community services 
and amenities 
 
The most efficient and effective forms of service delivery will be considered by the City, including 
partnerships with other entities that align with City objectives and priorities. This is to ensure that the 
resources within the community, or neighbouring communities, are leveraged to provide the best value to the 
citizens of Kelowna. 

 
7.2 The City will explore access to new sources of capital and revenue streams 
 
There is a limit to the level of taxes and fees that can be levied to provide services. In order to provide new 
services that might not normally be funded, the City needs to seek out new sources of capital and/or new 
revenue streams. This may be accomplished through exercising certain rights conferred on the City through 
legislation, leveraging City assets and/or making staff expertise available to other governments.  

 
7.3 The City will leverage existing assets to attract private sector involvement 
 

The City of Kelowna possesses many valuable assets such as land, parks and facilities. These assets can be 

attractive to the private sector in many different ways and therefore provide the City of Kelowna the 

opportunity to leverage these assets in giving greater value to the community. 
 

7.4 The City will leverage the expertise of outside partners 
 
In order to provide the best value to the community, the City will leverage the expertise of outside partners 
where appropriate. This may include, but is not limited to, other local governments, senior levels of 
government and agencies, First Nations, academia, private contractors, not-for-profits and non-governmental 
organizations.  
 

7.5 Services from partnerships will be reviewed regularly to ensure the needs of the City 
continue to be met 
 
Partnership agreements and services will be regularly reviewed to ensure that the service provided by the 
partnership is still relevant and continues to provide good value to the City.  

 
7.6 The City supports organizations within the community that enhance the quality of life 
The City recognizes the significant value of volunteers, volunteer groups and agencies to the spiritual, 
educational, social, cultural, and physical well-being of the community.  

19



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  12 

 

PROPERTY TAXATION 
 
Property taxes are generally used to fund services that are provided broadly to the whole community (e.g. 
roads, policing, fire, transportation, waste collection and disposal). 
 
Property tax is based on the assessed value of a property (i.e. land and improvements/buildings). Property 
owners have their property assessed on an annual basis by BC Assessment, and the assessed value of the 
property is then multiplied by the City of Kelowna’s tax rate (expressed as the amount of tax per thousand 
dollars of assessed property value) to compute an annual property tax. The tax rates are set for each of the 
various property classifications and adjusted annually to ensure that the City raises the required funds to 
support the annual budget. 
 

Objective 
 
To ensure property taxes and fees are sufficient to meet the community’s short and long-term needs. 

 

Strategies 
 
8.1 Property taxes will remain as stable as possible over time 
 
The City will strive to ensure that tax increases are measured and relatively consistent year to year. 

 
8.2 Property taxes will be comparative with similar communities 
 
The City needs to remain comparative in order to attract and retain economic development; however, it is 
recognized that the services and amenities provided by the City are also a major incentive for people and 
businesses moving to the region.  

 
8.3 Increases to property taxes will be balanced among assessment classes 
 
It is not uncommon for certain classes of properties to increase in value by a greater percentage than others 
in any given year. This would result in the amount of taxes being paid on these classes of properties to 
increase at a greater rate than for other classes whose values have not appreciated as quickly. In order to 
ensure that property tax increases are distributed fairly, the City will adjust the tax class ratios so that all 
classes of properties see their taxes increase by the same percentage in any given year. 
 

8.4 Property tax information will be transparent and easy to understand 
 
By continuing to be transparent and providing citizens access to information that is complete and easy to 
understand, they can better appreciate the high value they receive for their tax dollars. 
 

8.5 Property taxes will reflect the infrastructure, services and service levels that the 
community believes are important 
 
Built with input from the public, the City of Kelowna has a vision for the future and plans to get there. 
Through continued consultation, the City remains aware of community investment priorities and funding 
preferences, ensuring that plans and budgets stay on track to meet the needs of the community. 
  

20



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  13 

RESERVES & SURPLUS FUNDS 
 
Saving money for future projects and unexpected expenditures is an important planning consideration for the 
City. Reserves provide a financial mechanism for saving money to finance all or part of future infrastructure, 
equipment, and other requirements. Reserve funds can also provide a degree of financial stability, by 
reducing reliance on indebtedness to finance capital projects and acquisitions, or flexibility to leverage 
opportunities as they arise.  
 
There are three basic types of reserves: 
 
Accumulated surplus This is the net annual surplus that builds up over time. 

  
Reserve accounts These are reserves that are set aside for a future identified purpose, but can be 

readily accessed and repurposed as may be necessary. 
 

Statutory reserves  
(Reserve funds) 

These are reserves that are established by Council for a specific purpose through a 
bylaw. These reserves cannot be repurposed without revising the bylaw. 
 

Sufficient reserves offer the City resiliency in the event of abrupt changes to costs or revenues, and they 
should be generated and allocated judiciously as part of the City’s overall financial management practices.  
 

Objective 
 
To maintain sufficient reserves so the City has the flexibility to respond to opportunities, and maintain or 
improve levels of service. 

 

Strategies 
 
9.1 The purpose of each reserve will be documented and reviewed regularly 
 
The City will ensure that the purpose of each reserve is documented at the time it is established, and that 
this is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that the reserve is still required and that the balance in the 
reserve is appropriate. 

 
9.2 Ongoing operating requests will not be funded from reserves 
 
Redirecting funds from reserves or accumulated surplus to offset ongoing operating costs will not be 
considered by Council as an appropriate practice. 

 
9.3 Accumulated surplus will only be used as an emergency funding source 
 
Accumulated surplus will act as a fund for emergencies, such as fires and floods. Accumulated surplus should 
not be redirected to fund small capital projects or operating expenditures.  
 

  

21



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  14 

USER FEES & CHARGES 
 
User fees and charges are another way that the City of Kelowna raises revenues. User fees and charges are 
useful because those that benefit from a service bear the cost of it. 
 
User fees and charges should have a direct relationship to the actual cost of providing a service. Some 
services are funded by a mix of fees and general taxation. Recreation facilities are a good example - user fees 
pay for some of the cost but taxation covers the balance of the cost.  
 

Objective 
 
To ensure user fees and charges are sufficient to meet the City’s needs. 

 

Strategies 
 
10.1 Everyone will pay a fair amount for the services they receive 
 
It is important that the people, who benefit from a service, pay a fair amount for it.  

 
10.2 Services will be reasonably accessible by all citizens 
 
This means that the City may choose to set user fees and charges for certain services so they do not fully 
recover the cost to provide the service, and use other sources of funding in the budget to subsidize the cost. 
Examples include services for which the entire community benefits, and/or where ability to pay is a primary 
criterion, such as sportsfields. 

 
10.3 User fees will be transparent and easy to understand 
 
There should be a clear link between the benefit received from the service and the fee paid. Fees are 
calculated in a way that is fair, those who use the service pay for it, they are understandable, reviewed 
regularly and available to the public if requested. 
  

22



CITY OF KELOWNA  FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES & STRATEGIES 

  15 

GLOSSARY 
 
To be determined. 
 

 

23



P R I N C I P L E S  &  S T R AT E G I E S  
FOR FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND STABILITY 

24



 
COUNC IL WORKSHOP #3  

 

OBJECTIVE 

Receive Council endorsement for City of Kelowna 

financial principles & strategies document 

25



P R O J E C T  R AT I O N A L E  

Strong financial management is a primary goal 
of the City 

Council and staff are responsible to ensure that 
the City is in a healthy financial position to 
meet the current and future needs of the 
community 

Formalize principles and strategies into one 
document to guide Council and staff in making 
sound financial decisions 

26



F R A M E W O R K  

Community Vision and 
Priorities 

Principles of Financial 
Sustainability  

Strategies for Financial 
Sustainability 

Financial Policies and 
Performance Measures 

Budgeting and Planning 

Financial 
Principles & 
Strategies 
Framework 

Council Priorities 
Corporate Framework 

Implementation 

27



 S I M I L A R  F R A M E W O R K  

 
 

28



S I M I L A R  F R A M E W O R K  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

29



L O O K I N G  F O RWA R D  

April/May 2015 
Meetings with 
Staff 

May 25th 
Council 
Workshop #1 

June 
Draft Principles 
and Strategies 
Document 

June 22nd 
Council 
Workshop #2 

July 27 
Council 
Workshop #3 

Fall 2015 
Develop 
Policies 

2016 
Develop 
Performance 
Measures 

2016 and 
Beyond 
Build Plans 

This Project 

August 2015 
Finalize 
Principles & 
Strategies 
Document 

30



P R I N C I P L E S  F O R  
 F I N A N C I A L S T R E N G T H  &  S TA B I L I T Y  
 

Sufficient - Revenues and expenses support the City’s 
service levels and long term goals   

Pragmatic - Financial decisions take measured risks while 
ensuring appropriate service levels are protected 

Flexible - Financial policies allow for opportunities and 
changing circumstances  

Transparent – Financial strategies, plans and processes are 
accessible and visible 

Balanced – Service levels are affordable and appropriate  

31



S T R AT E G I E S  F O R   
F I N A N C I A L S T R E N G T H  A N D  S TA B I L I T Y  

10 STRATEGIES 

ASSETS – NEW ASSETS – RENEW 

DEBT DEVELOPMENT FINANCING 

GRANTS OPERATIONS 

PARTNERSHIPS & ENTERPRISE PROPERTY TAXATION 

RESERVES & SURPLUS FUNDS USER FEES & CHARGES 

32



REV IEW DOCUMENT    
 

33



F I N A L O U T C O M E  

 

One comprehensive, Council endorsed document 
that outlines the City’s Financial Principles and 
Strategies 

Including glossary 

One double-sided summary, or “cheat sheet” 

Website and social media 

34



I N T E N D E D  U S E R S  

For Reference 

Community and interested stakeholders 

For Decision Making 

Council 

City Manager 

Senior Leadership Team  

For Recommendations 

Staff 

35



L O O K I N G  F O RWA R D  

April/May 2015 
Meetings with 
Staff 

May 25th 
Council 
Workshop #1 

June  
Draft Principles 
and Strategies 
Document 

June 22nd 
Council 
Workshop #2 

July 27 
Council 
Workshop #3 

Fall 2015 
Develop 
Policies 

2016 
Develop 
Performance 
Measures 

2016 and 
Beyond 
Build Plans 

This Project 

August 2015 
Finalize 
Principles & 
Strategies 
Document 

36



Q U E S T I O N S / C O M M E N T S  

37



 

July 8, 2015 
 
Mayor and Council 
City of Kelowna 
1435 Water Street 
Kelowna, BC 
V1Y 1J4 
 
Dear Mayor Basran and members of Council, 
 
Re: Sponsorship for 2015 Creative City Summit 
 
Pursuant to Council Policy 058 (Grant-in-Aid Funding Requests), this is a request for a 
$3,500 sponsorship contribution in support of the Charles Montgomery workshop and 
keynote address at the 2015 Creative City Summit, to be held in Kelowna October 27-29, 
2015. 
 
The Summit is an initiative of the Creative City Network of Canada, a national community 
of practice for cultural development professionals. Over 100 Canadian municipalities are 
members of the Network. The City of Kelowna has been a member of the Network since 
its launch in 2002, and two City staff (Lorna Gunn and Sandra Kochan) have also served 
with the Network’s Board of Directors. 
 
The City of Kelowna was awarded hosting of the 2015 Summit through a competitive 
bidding process, and planning is well underway. As host community, Kelowna is primarily 
responsible for the Welcome Reception, local Study Tours and artistic animation 
throughout the event. Caroline Ivey from the Cultural Services Branch has a primary role 
as Host Municipality Coordinator, with additional support from the Cultural Services 
Manager and other Active Living & Culture Division staff. Pursuant to our hosting 
agreement with the Network, in addition to the in-kind value of staff support, 
approximately $10,000 from the Cultural Services budget will be expended for specific 
venue and hospitality costs, artist fees, study tour expenses and delegate amenities. 
 
A noteworthy highlight for the 2015 Summit is a keynote address and workshop by Charles 
Montgomery, author of Happy City: Transforming Our Lives Through Urban Design. The 
keynote address will be delivered at 5 pm on Thursday, October 29 at the Rotary Centre 
for the Arts. In a rare departure from the typical Summit format, the presentation 
will be open to both Summit delegates and public ticketholders. This is an opportunity 
for the local community, including elected leaders, planning and design professionals and 
local ‘urbanists’ to hear from a dynamic thinker who, through behavioural science 
research, human experience and urban history, offers up ideas and solutions for better 
cities and a happier population. 
 
  

Active Living & 
Culture 
Glenmore Office 
#105 – 1014 
Glenmore Drive 
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 4P2 
TEL 250 469-8811 
FAX 250 862-3368 
kelowna.ca 

38

http://www.creativecity.ca/
http://thehappycity.com/


  

The workshop will be provided for Summit delegates and consists of a ‘happiness audit’ of 
the RCMP/Kelowna Community Theatre site in the Cultural District. The audit is based on 
incorporating wellbeing principles into urban design and cultural planning, and will deliver 
recommendations to inform local interventions and site redevelopment plans. City staff 
will be providing background information to the Montgomery team in preparation for the 
workshop and a number of staff from several departments will be engaged as volunteer 
facilitators during the workshop. 
 
Costs associated with bringing Charles Montgomery to Kelowna for the workshop and 
keynote address are approximately $15,000 and are not included in the host community 
commitment through the Cultural Services budget. Contributions toward the Charles 
Montgomery related costs are budgeted as follows: 

Creative City Network of Canada     $5,150 
Ticket sales (160 seats – net revenue after box office fees) $2,700 
City of Kelowna Grant in Aid request    $3,500 
Private sector sponsorships and other grants   $3,650 

TOTAL $15,000 
 
A sponsorship brochure is attached, along with the current Summit ‘schedule at a glance.’ 
 
Note: this request is submitted jointly by staff from both the City of Kelowna and the 
Creative City Network of Canada but funding, if approved, would be paid directly to the 
Creative City Network of Canada which holds the contract with Mr. Montgomery. 
 
Recognition of the City of Kelowna’s Grant-in-Aid support will be provided through: 

• Verbal announcement to the keynote audience 
• Creative City Network website 
• Creative City Network communications (newsletters and bulletins) leading up to 

the Summit 
• Printed materials provided to delegates 
• Press releases and promotions coordinated by Cultural Services, Communications 

and the Creative City Network of Canada. 
 

Thank you for considering this request and assisting in delivering a valuable program for 
the benefit of the Summit and the community. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Sandra Kochan   and   Jennifer Lord 
Cultural Services Manager     General Manager 
Direct tel: 250.469-8935     Creative City Network of Canada 
skochan@kelowna.ca      Tel: 604-688-2489 
        jennifer@creativecity.ca 
 
 

2 
 

39

http://www.creativecity.ca/network-activities/creative-city-summits/2015-summit%23announcing-our-keynote-speakers
http://hosted-p0.vresp.com/292469/1e507bacc2/ARCHIVE
mailto:skochan@kelowna.ca
mailto:jennifer@creativecity.ca

	Agenda
	2. Draft Minutes - July 13, 2015 AM Regular Meeting.pdf
	6.1 Report_Principles and Strategies for Financial Strength and Stability.pdf
	6.1 Financial Principles and Strategies_0727015.pdf
	6.1 Council Endorsed Principles and Strategies July 27.pdf
	10.1 2015 07 08 Summit GIA Request.pdf

